SECTION II:  FACTS ALLEGED 

2. THE FACTS

Below are the circumstances of our case, all of which the United States government refused to investigate:

· May 2013: Shyloh Sturm had a venous sinus thrombosis (a stroke) in the womb at 7.5 months. This was caused by brain cancer—specifically, a brain tumor in the fourth ventricle that had herniated (moved) her cerebellum upwards, moved her brainstem forward, and blocked her superior sagital sinus [see “MRI Image 1” and “MRI Image 2,” which were taken from Shyloh’s three-month brain MRI; the full MRI can be downloaded here: http://apostlesoil.com/MRI.zip ]. The stroke and cancer had caused Shyloh to violently seize in the womb, making it nearly impossible for her mother (Kira Salak, Ph.D.) to breathe. On a particularly bad night, Ms. Salak was rushed to Garmisch-Partenkirchen Hospital in Germany, where an ultrasound of Shyloh was performed. According to the medical literature, that 7.5-month ultrasound would have revealed the stroke and herniation of Shyloh’s brainstem and cerebellum. In addition, Ms. Salak’s symptoms also clearly indicated that the child was under duress. However, the hospital’s doctors insisted that Shyloh was “normal,” hiding the child’s cancer and strokes, and the severity of her condition. An intravenous steroid was given to Ms. Salak, which, medically, is the treatment for infantile spasms—the type of epileptic seizures Shyloh had at the time. Once the steroids had stopped Shyloh’s seizures, Ms. Salak was sent home with no further instructions, doctors not offering an explanation or diagnosis for her ER visit. Shyloh’s seizures resumed shortly after Ms. Salak left the hospital, and Shyloh continued to seize for the rest of the pregnancy.

· July 24, 2013: Ms. Salak went into labor. Shyloh could not be born vaginally because her brain was severely swollen from the cancer, making her head too large to pass through the birth canal.

· July 25, 2013: Shyloh was born by cesarean section at Garmisch-Partenkirchen Hospital, Germany. At birth, Shyloh was only in the 1st percentile for weight, and suffered from the worst forms of infantile epilepsy, infantile spasms, and cerebral palsy. She could only feed for a few seconds before violent spasms pulled her off the breast. She was having over 100 grand mal seizures per day. Shyloh’s mother breastfed her day and night to keep her alive, while her father sought diagnosis and treatment. Regardless of his best efforts, the German doctors categorically refused to diagnose Shyloh, telling him that the child was 100% normal—despite Shyloh’s feeding difficulties, constant seizures, malnourishment, and poor weight. When Ms. Salak had sufficiently recovered from her cesarean surgery, the doctors sent her home with Shyloh, offering no reason for her cesarean section, and no treatment for Shyloh beyond what her parents could give her.

· September 21, 2013: Shyloh went into long states of status epilepticus (constant epileptic seizures), drifting in and out of comas. Her parents called Germany’s emergency hotline, and Shyloh and her mother were rushed by chopper to Garmisch-Partenkirchen Hospital. At the hospital, doctors once again denied that there was anything wrong with Shyloh, telling her parents that she was just sleeping (Shyloh could not be aroused in any way—not by pinching or loud noises, etc.). The doctors performed an ultrasound of her brain. They also checked to see if her heart was healthy (likely confirming that it could be used later for organ transplant). Because the doctors did not tell Shyloh’s parents the truth—that tumors were proliferating in her posterior fossa (the back, bottom part of the skull), causing strokes—her parents allowed the doctors to perform a lumbar puncture (spinal tap) on her, supposedly “to check for meningitis.” The lumbar puncture is a procedure that is well documented in the medical literature to be potentially fatal to infants with brain tumors like Shyloh’s. As later revealed in her three-month MRI, this spinal tap created such a suction in Shyloh’s spinal column that the back of her brain and the primary tumor were forced downward against the foramen magnum (the opening at the base of the skull). In addition to this movement of the brain compressing her basilar artery and creating an arterial stroke, the lumbar puncture also caused the tumor in her fourth ventricle to become compressed between the brainstem and cerebellum. This prevented cerebral spinal fluid from flowing into Shyloh’s spine, which was not the case prior to the procedure (or the lumbar puncture could not have been performed). In addition, shortly after the spinal tap was performed, Shyloh started vomiting for the first time—the telltale sign of blockage of the fourth ventricle. The vomiting persisted for days.

· September 23-24, 2013: Two days after the lumbar puncture, doctors performed an EEG on Shyloh, which showed that she was still having severe seizures. Yet, when the parents insisted that she had epilepsy, the doctors vehemently denied it and claimed the EEG was “normal.” After three days in the hospital with no change in her condition, Shyloh was sent home—with no diagnosis and no treatment. The head doctor gave Shyloh’s parents a single valium suppository to use in case of emergency. (Valium suppositories are only given to infants in life-threatening status epilepticus states, as Shyloh had been. Shyloh’s family doctor also gave her a valium suppository prescription.)

· September 26, 2013: Five days after doctors performed the lumbar puncture on Shyloh, her father obtained a prescription for THC from Shyloh’s family doctor, Dr. Med. Thomas Autenrieth of Saulgrub, Germany. The THC—needed for treating her epileptic seizures—was a prescription that could only be given in Germany to a child who was untreatable and in great suffering (a second German family doctor, Dr. Med. Franjo Grotenhermen of Germany, also gave Shyloh a THC prescription several months later). As Mr. Sturm arrived home with the THC tincture from the pharmacy, Shyloh went into a violent seizure. As a severe thunderstorm made it impossible to take her back to the hospital by chopper, Shyloh’s parents did not call the emergency room. Shyloh’s father, who studied pre-med in college and had medical training, knew that the hospital could not provide any additional care for her, anyway. Also, he knew that she would likely die during the hour-long ambulance ride to the hospital. Therefore, Shyloh’s parents decided not to take her back to the hospital. Instead, they administered the valium suppository and THC tincture that the doctors had given them. Despite this, Shyloh had a status epilepticus seizure that lasted over six minutes, which caused her to stop breathing. Her parents rushed her lifeless body into the shower and ran cold water over her head. The frigid temperature reduced the swelling in her brain, and as blood flowed back into those parts that controlled respiration and heart rate, Shyloh resumed breathing and came back to life. Over the next 30 minutes, Shyloh repeatedly stopped and started breathing. Finally, the THC tincture took effect and she began Cheyne-Stokes breathing (pre-death breathing that can still sustain life). However, the THC tincture worsened Shyloh’s cerebral palsy and made it impossible for her to feed. Therefore, to keep her alive and to control both her epilepsy and cerebral palsy, her parents created a milk tea containing a mixture of cannabis flowers (for epilepsy) and hemp flowers (for cerebral palsy and to eliminate the psychotropic effects of the THC). This tea not only kept Shyloh alive, but dramatically improved her condition.

· September 30 2013: Shyloh’s parents took her to Dr. Med. Hans Kopp of Garmisch-Partenkirchen (who is associated with Garmisch-Partenkirchen Hospital’s pediatric ward), for another EEG and examination. Despite being confronted with a video showing Shyloh with epilepsy and cerebral palsy, Dr. Kopp still denied that she had any abnormalities and falsely claimed that her two EEGs were “normal” (in fact, they both have clear abnormalities, including a reduced signal in the right temporal lobe that had been severely injured by the basilar artery stroke and brain herniation; Shyloh’s EEGs can be downloaded here: http://apostlesoil.com/Shyloh_Sturm_EEG.zip ). Mr. Sturm repeatedly asked Dr. Kopp for an electronic copy of Shyloh’s second EEG, but, despite the requirements of German law, he refused to give him one.

· October 30, 2013: Shyloh’s parents took her to the Pediatric Neurology Clinic of Ludwig Maximilian University (LMU) hospital in Munich. She and her mother were placed on a special, locked ward containing only foreign, mostly Muslim, children. Doctors performed an ultrasound of Shyloh’s brain, and then a third EEG. This EEG showed that she still had severe epilepsy and brain injury, but was not approaching brain death—apparently because of the therapeutic effects of the cannabis. However, as with the doctors in Garmisch-Partenkirschen, the LMU doctors claimed that Shyloh’s EEG was completely “normal” (in truth, in addition to other abnormalities, this third EEG had no signal in the area of the right temporal lobe—the same abnormality that had appeared in the previous two EEGs). The LMU doctors also claimed that Shyloh’s brain ultrasound was “normal.” Shortly after Mr. Sturm was seen leaving the ward, LMU pediatrician Dr. Med. Sita Javeri told Shyloh’s mother that she needed to take Shyloh to another room for a “blood draw.” Ms. Salak was not permitted to come along as Dr. Javeri and some nurses took Shyloh into a locked examination room. Ms. Salak soon heard inconsolable screeching that sounded as if Shyloh were being tortured. As soon as Shyloh’s father returned, both parents rushed to the room to see what was going on. Dr. Javeri’s nurse emerged with Shyloh in her arms. The baby was still screaming, and there were red marks and bruises on the tops of her hands. Shyloh’s forehead and hair were covered with blood—which the nurse was busy trying to sop up with a gauze pad—and there was an obvious puncture wound over the front fontanel [the fissure between the two skull plates]. The only known procedure performed on an infant at that location is a “ventricular puncture”—a procedure in which a large needle is inserted through the fontanel, deep into the brain, to withdraw cerebral spinal fluid. As it is a very risky procedure, requiring utmost precision, it is normally only done by a neurosurgeon under the strictest operating conditions, with full anesthesia. In this case, the procedure was done by a pediatrician with no anesthesia, in a ward examination room, with a struggling child who needed to be physically held down. When Ms. Salak demanded to know why there was blood all over her baby’s forehead, neither the nurses nor Dr. Javeri would answer her. Dr. Javeri only commented, “Don’t worry—babies don’t remember pain.” For a year after that procedure, Shyloh suffered from severe PTSD, screaming in terror if she was placed on her back or left in darkness (she went totally blind after the procedure, regaining vision in the left eye a few days later, and in the right eye six months later). Fortunately, her cannabis medicine protected her from death and she survived the procedure.

· November 31, 2013: The LMU doctors said they could not diagnose or treat Shyloh unless they could see her off her cannabis medicine (likely because they knew that it was saving Shyloh’s life). The doctors had already witnessed her seizures in videos, had conducted numerous diagnostic tests confirming Shyloh’s cancer and strokes, and had seen her seizing right before them. Yet, they still refused to help Shyloh unless the parents took her off the medicine. As their daughter needed a diagnosis to be fully legally treated with cannabis flowers, the parents had no choice but to concede to the doctors’ demands. Within six hours of being taken off her cannabis medicine, Shyloh went into violent seizures and could not feed. The LMU doctors observed Shyloh for nearly 30 minutes as she contorted in agonizing pain, waiting to see if she would finally die. When she did not, Drs. Borgraffe and Jiveri both told the parents to resume giving her cannabis medicine. Within 30 minutes of receiving the first dose, Shyloh’s excruciating seizures stopped, her crying ended, and she could breastfeed again. Yet, the doctors still refused to diagnose her.

· November 3, 2013: LMU performed an MRI of Shyloh’s brain, likely to find out why she would not die. This MRI, as stated above, shows strokes and forward herniation (movement) of the brainstem [see MRI Images 1-2 for the strokes, and Images 3-5 for compression of the basilar artery, forward movement of the brainstem, and dural tails around the tumor]. Doctors falsified Shyloh’s MRI report, telling her parents that Shyloh’s brain was 100% normal, with absolutely no irregularities. Based on this falsification, LMU refused to give Shyloh a diagnosis, treatment, medicine, or physical therapy. The doctors sent her home, forcing her parents to do round-the-clock intensive care without any medical assistance whatsoever.

· January-February 2014: Shyloh’s parents repeatedly asked LMU to send them a copy of their daughter’s medical records, which was their right by German law. All their requests were ignored. This forced Mr. Sturm to drive nearly two hours to Munich to demand Shyloh’s medical records in person. He was told that they were in the ward where Shyloh had stayed, but the on-call doctor could not find them in the system (this doctor had no previous knowledge of Shyloh’s case). She finally located them in a special folder, but refused to print them until she had checked with Dr. Med. Ingo Borggräfe, the head neuropediatrician in charge of Shyloh’s care. When she paged him, but he did not answer, Mr. Sturm demanded that she give him the records immediately. Legally unable to refuse his request, she printed them out. The records were marked “draft” in large letters across the front. Despite the fact that three months had passed since Shyloh was at LMU, the records were still incomplete and awaiting further editing [a copy of these “draft” records are included with this petition, translated from German to English]. Though Shyloh had two prescriptions for THC, with an unauthorized drug test showing THC levels too low for psychotropic effect, the LMU doctors recommended in their report that she be removed from her cannabis medicine—the very medicine that they had witnessed was keeping her alive and controlling her seizures.

· Late-February, 2014: Shortly after retrieving Shyloh’s draft records, Mr. Sturm received a letter from LMU giving Shyloh an appointment time, supposedly for physical therapy. Yet, when her parents researched the two “physical therapists” scheduled to be at the appointment, they discovered that they were an adult drug abuse counselor and an infant drug addiction counselor. As Shyloh’s father had worked with abused children for nearly five years (he has a university degree in Psychology, in addition to his degrees in Physics and Computer Science), he knew immediately that this appointment was actually a drug intervention meant to seize Shyloh. As the LMU “draft” record strongly recommended removing Shyloh from her cannabis medicine, citing the possibility of addiction (though it is an established medical fact that cannabis is not physically addictive), it was clear that the doctors were going to continue claiming that Shyloh was “normal,” while fabricating a legal excuse to remove her from her life-giving medicine. Shyloh’s parents knew that if the German doctors succeeded, Shyloh would die, so they fled to Switzerland, where they hoped to find a doctor who would be willing to diagnose her.

· March 7, 2014: While staying in Switzerland, Shyloh’s parents contacted the leading Swiss epilepsy clinic, University Children’s Hospital in Zurich. To their great surprise, the Swiss clinic not only refused to see Shyloh, but threatened her German family doctor, Dr. Grotenhermen, because he had prescribed her THC [see the Swiss doctors’ threatening letter to Dr. Grotenhermen among the documents]. The clinic doctors also called their LMU counterparts in Germany, turned over Shyloh’s case to their social services doctor, and demanded that Dr. Grotenhermen reveal the location of Shyloh’s parents (which he did not do). The situation was escalating beyond control, yet Shyloh’s parents—American citizens—could not go to their own embassy for protection because the U.S. Government listed cannabis as a Schedule 1 Drug: i.e., “highly addicting and with no medicinal value.” Because of this improper scheduling, as well as the medical system’s refusal to diagnose Shyloh, her parents would not be legally allowed to give Shyloh her life-saving medicine if they returned to the USA, nor could they safely enter a U.S. embassy or hospital with her.

· March 12, 2014: As Mr. Sturm has Jewish ancestry, and because Israel has an established medical marijuana program for children, the Sturm family went to the Israeli Embassy in Bern, Switzerland to ask for protection until they could get permission from the Israeli government to bring Shyloh and her medicine into the country. (Controlling Shyloh’s seizures requires a unique strain of cannabis flowers that must be grown specifically for her; none of the commercially available strains can keep her alive). They also contacted Israel’s leading cannabis researcher for assistance on importing Shyloh’s medicine. However, the Israeli Embassy refused to offer them any help, its security officer telling them, “Even [Prime Minister] Netanyahu can’t help you.” Mr. Sturm tried to give the man evidence of the German doctors’ crimes, hoping to at least protect the other Jewish children living in Germany, but the officer refused under any condition to take it and brusquely escorted the family from the embassy grounds.

· March-April 2014: With no options, the Sturm family fled to Spain, where cannabis was legal. As Shyloh’s parents could get no help from the medical system for their daughter—indeed, it had become clear that the doctors were a far greater threat than Shyloh’s medical conditions were—her parents were forced to stabilize Shyloh, themselves. Mr. Sturm was a scientist and researcher, and he and Shyloh’s mother (Kira Salak, Ph.D.) developed a new cannabis treatment protocol that used targeted ratios of THC (from cannabis flowers) and CBD (from hemp flowers) to control Shyloh’s upper and lower brain seizures. To the parents’ excitement, this system fully treated her metastasized brain cancer, strokes, epilepsy, and cerebral palsy (medical conditions that affect millions of people, and which are all are untreatable by Western medicine). Cannabis had proven itself to be the future of disease control.

· April 14-15, 2014: Shyloh’s parents knew that the only way to keep their daughter safe and get her proper medical care was to have her MRI read honestly. So they paid Dr. Daniel Powers, MD (an experienced trial doctor licensed in 48 states, who ran a second-opinion MRI business from California) to read Shyloh’s MRI. He did so with the assistance of Dr. Stephen M. Dorros, MD, Head of Radiology at UC San Diego Hospital. After a week of consideration, both men claimed that the MRI was 100% normal. When Shyloh’s parents saw their falsified report, they realized that a secret, international system to murder disabled children still existed, just as it had back in Nazi Germany, with Powers and Dorros falsifying Shyloh’s MRI report to hide the crimes of German colleagues. (Shyloh’s parents also contacted the leading child neurology clinics in the USA for a second opinion; all of them refused to return phone calls or emails once they had received a copy of Shyloh’s MRI.) Apparently, there was also an international system of medical fraud, with doctors fragrantly lying to patients and falsifying medical records and test reports. As doctors knew that a child with Shyloh’s medical conditions could not survive without diagnosis and proper care, the falsification of her MRI was attempted murder. With the doctors in three countries—Germany, Switzerland, and the USA—conspiring to kill Shyloh, her parents realized that there was no country in the Western world where they could safely seek medical care for her.

· April-July, 2015: The Sturm family left Spain for Holland, where there was a greater availability of medicinal cannabis strains. Shyloh’s parents made several attempts to submit a human rights complaint to the U.N. Human Rights Council—which, it should be noted, was headed by Germany in 2015. Mr. Sturm’s first package to the Council, sent by registered express mail from the Netherlands, was diverted to Germany—the very country cited in the parents’ complaint—then returned to the Netherlands and seized [see “Tracking 1” image for evidence of the package seizure]. A second package was sent by Shyloh’s grandfather, living in the USA, to the U.N. Human Rights Council in Switzerland [see “Tracking 2” image]; this package appears to have been seized at the American processing facility, as there is no data entered into the tracking. A third package was sent to the U.N.’s Secretary General in New York City; tracking information for that package does appear to be legitimate, and that package does appear to have arrived [see “Tracking 3” image]. Still, no one from the U.N. Headquarters in New York City ever responded. In addition, a package was hand-delivered by Shyloh’s parents to the Catholic Archdiocese of Utrecht, Holland, with a request that it be given to the U.N. Human Rights Council on their behalf. Yet, despite all these documented methods of delivery, the U.N. Human Rights Council refused to acknowledge receipt of the package—though it is mandated to reply to all submitted complaints.

Below are the circumstances involving the United States which violated Shyloh’s human rights:

· August 2015: Mr. Sturm asked Shyloh’s grandfather to send a registered packet on his behalf from Chicago, USA to FBI Director James B. Comey. The package contained a letter explaining in detail the procedures used by German doctors to murder Shyloh, as well as evidence of their crimes [download the letter here: http://apostlesoil.com/FBI_Letter.PDF ]. Mr. Sturm requested an investigation into the doctors’ assaults which, according to FBI definitions, were an act of terrorism and well within their jurisdiction; also, he asked them to investigate the two American doctors—Dr. Powers and Dr. Dorros—who had knowingly falsified Shyloh’s MRI report (which was also within FBI jurisdiction, as the family had been out-of-country when requesting Dr. Powers’ services). Yet, once again, the package’s tracking showed only one entry [see “Tracking 4a and 4b” image], making it likely that it was seized before it ever reached its destination. As the FBI is likely responsible for such package seizures, one can presume that Director Comey did receive the package one way or the other, either officially or unofficially, but had no intention of responding.

· September 2015: Feeling it prudent to leave the European continent, the Sturm family moved to Uruguay, where cannabis was legal. Needing urgent medical care for his daughter, Mr. Sturm entered the U.S. Embassy in Montevideo, Uruguay to request an FBI investigation of the crimes committed against his daughter in Europe and the USA, as well as an honest reading of his daughter’s MRI. Mr. Sturm explained all the details of Shyloh’s story to Consular Officer Corey Bordenkecher (a conversation that, presumably, had been recorded). He gave Mr. Bordenkecher a packet containing evidence that doctors in three countries had colluded to murder Shyloh, and that doctors would likely try to harm her if she entered a hospital again. Mr. Bordenkecher’s response to Mr. Sturm was that he should take Shyloh to Montevideo’s British Hospital. He would offer no further suggestions or assistance. Mr. Sturm gave Mr. Bordenkecher the letter he had sent to FBI Director James Comey, as well as the package of evidence for Shyloh’s case—which Mr. Bordenkecher said he would forward to an “FBI liaison” in Buenos Aires, Argentina. The request went out on Friday, the response returned (via Mr. Bordenkecher) by Monday: the FBI would not investigate Shyloh’s case. No reason was provided. In addition, the “FBI liaison” refused to communicate with Mr. Sturm directly [see “US Embassy Uruguay Correspondence attached”].

· December 2015: As the FBI refused to investigate the crimes committed against Shyloh, preventing Shyloh from receiving the medical care she desperately needed, Mr. Sturm contacted his senator, Kirsten Gillibrand of New York (D) [download letter here: apostlesoil.com/Senator Gillibrand.doc] for assistance in getting the FBI to investigate the case. Yet, despite IP log evidence that Ms. Gillibrand received his email, and despite her website’s assurances that every email sent to her office receives a response, Ms. Gillibrand did not respond to Mr. Sturm’s request for help for his daughter.

· January 2, 2016: Mr. Sturm wrote U.S. President Barack Obama (download letter here: apostlesoil.com/President Obama.doc ). His letter was sent by FedEx (by Shyloh’s grandfather, on Mr. Sturm’s behalf) from Chicago, USA to the White House [see a copy of the letter, included with the attached documents]. FedEx’s website listed the package as arriving at the White House in 0 business days, though the package was sent on Saturday by three-day-air [see “Tracking 5” image]. Apparently, this package was specially expedited over the weekend; yet, it received no response from the White House.

· February 2016: Shyloh’s mother wrote her Illinois senator, Marc Kirk (R), telling him about the gravity of Shyloh’s situation, and asking for assistance in getting the FBI to investigate Shyloh’s case (download letter here: apostlesoil.com/Senator%20Kirk.doc ) . Mr. Kirk did not respond. Mr. Sturm submitted a claim to the FBI’s Internet Fraud division against Dr. Powers and Dr. Dorros (as their MRI-reading fraud occurred via the Internet). The FBI fraud division did not get back to Mr. Sturm. Shyloh’s parents have now exhausted all established bureaucratic routes for justice, which is why they are now contacting the IACHR.

The Current Situation

Shyloh was born with the most extreme, life-threatening forms of brain cancer, strokes, epilepsy, and cerebral palsy, but has had no medical care since she was born. She is now 2.5 years old. Based on symptomatology, it appears that the cannabis has fully treated her cancer and strokes. Up until very recently the cannabis provided full control of her epilepsy and cerebral palsy, both untreatable with Western medicine. Despite her conditions, it appears that Shyloh has been protected by the cannabis and has had no loss of cognitive function, and her intelligence seems to be far above normal. She has had no MRI since three months old, and needs one to check the status of her cancer, strokes, and brain injury. Tests also need to be done to determine if her corpus callosum injuries have resulted in split-brain (i.e., a disconnection of the right and left hemispheres of the brain)—a condition that would require special therapy. She still has some paralysis in her throat that makes it difficult to swallow. Recently, her right temporal lobe epilepsy has worsened and she is now having about five breakthrough seizures a day (which are controlled with cannabis within a few minutes). Without diagnostic testing, Shyloh’s parents do not know if this recent change is because Shyloh has had bleeding or stroking in her brain, and her life is in grave danger, or if this change is a normal result of her brain developing and growing or from a recent change in medicine. Shyloh has varicose (enlarged) veins throughout her body from venous strokes, but she has had no tests performed to determine if her heart was injured by the strokes. Shyloh cannot yet feed herself, likely because of injuries to the corpus callosum, and she needs physical therapy to learn how to coordinate her hands for feeding. Shyloh also does not talk yet and needs speech therapy (she can communicate all her needs non-verbally, however, and so her problem is only with language, not cognition).

The brain cancer metastasized to the bone and destroyed Shyloh’s teeth. She will need dental care and tests to see if bones in the skull and vertebrae have recovered from the cancer. Shyloh also needs a current EEG and MRI, read correctly, to determine the status of her epilepsy and brain injury. She will need physical therapy to improve her walking (she still has some slight effects from the paralysis on the left side, and minor balance problems from the cerebral palsy). Shyloh’s parents have been unable to get hemp flowers or hemp seed oil into Uruguay due to the country’s strict import laws. Mr. Sturm has only two months of hemp flowers left and no hemp seed oil. Without hemp flowers, Shyloh’s cerebral palsy cannot be controlled and she will not be able to feed—so she will die without this medicine. Hemp seed oil appears to have medicinal properties that help stabilize her condition, and these properties do not exist in the olive oil that her parents must now use as a base for her medicine.

Despite Shyloh’s two THC prescriptions, the German, Swiss and U.S. doctors’ refusal to diagnose her has created an untenable situation in which her parents can only save her life by breaking the law. As long as Shyloh’s medical tests are falsified and she has no diagnosis, doctors and social workers can legally remove her from her medicine and kill her at any time, and there is nothing Shyloh’s parents can do to protect her. Therefore, her life is in constant danger, and her parents must hide her illness and treatment from authorities and doctors. If at any time Shyloh needs emergency medical care, she will be forced to go to the very people who made multiple attempts on her life.
For all these reasons, Shyloh’s parents are putting this petition before the IACHR and requesting precautionary measures.

SECTION II

4. HUMAN RIGHTS ALLEGEDLY VIOLATED

Below are Shyloh’s human rights that were violated by the United States:

Shyloh Sturm’s human rights were violated first through omission—by the U.S.’s failure to investigate the crimes committed against her by doctors in Germany, Switzerland, and the USA. In addition, the government of the United States violated Shyloh’s human rights through action—by its insistence that cannabis be kept a Schedule 1 Drug (i.e., “possessing no medicinal value”), thereby denying patients like Shyloh access to the only medicine that can save their lives. Though cannabis’s medicinal potency has been well-documented for thousands of years, and though it was the main ingredient in most medicines used in the USA up to the early 20th century, the United States government refuses to correct cannabis’s Schedule 1 status. In the process, it legally prevents millions of patients like Shyloh from having the right to save their own lives. Cannabis prohibition, in any form, is synonymous with denial of medical care.

Cannabis prohibition violates the right of every individual to have free access to medical care and treatment. As elucidated by Shyloh’s case, it is routine for doctors to lie to patients and to falsify their medical records and test reports, thereby hiding legitimate illnesses from them. Given this fact, one can logically assume that a majority of so-called “recreational marijuana users” are actually—and quite unknowingly—treating medical conditions that doctors refuse to diagnose or treat. (For example, Shyloh’s father, Mr. Sturm, contracted systemic sarcoidosis [a kind of slow-growing cancer] from exposure to sarin and mustard agents in the First Gulf War. All doctors—Army, VA, and civilian—falsified his medical records over a period of 18 years to hide the sarcoidosis until a pulmonologist mistakenly revealed it. By Western medical standards, Mr. Sturm was terminal five years ago and should have died, but cannabis saved his life.)

Through cannabis prohibition, the U.S. is systematically persecuting the disabled by preventing them from having access to the only medicine that will keep them alive. Children like Shyloh—suffering from “untreatable” cancer, epilepsy, strokes, or cerebral palsy—are needlessly dying or suffering because the U.S. government refuses to reschedule cannabis and acknowledge its medicinal value. In addition, the U.S. is committing an act of terror against the disabled by arresting and jailing people who are using cannabis for legitimate medical conditions—conditions being hidden from them by a broken medical system.

[NOTE: One can see a blaring example of the way the medical system hides conditions from patients by looking at mental illness. As is well documented in the current medical literature, all “mental illnesses” are actually seizure disorders in different parts of the brain (i.e., epilepsies). Psychology, itself, is based on an early-20th century understanding of the brain before advanced medical imaging became available; its theories are now completely disproved by current neurological knowledge. Addictive and violent behavior arise from seizures/epilepsies in the frontal lobes; nearly all other forms of “mental illness” arise from seizures/epilepsies in the medial temporal lobes (schizophrenia, clinical depression, manic depressive disorder, post traumatic stress disorder, obsessive compulsive disorder, anxiety disorder, social anxiety disorder, etc.). The term for seizures occurring in the medial temporal lobes is “Mesial Temporal Lobe Epilepsy” (MTLE). This epilepsy is common because the medial temporal lobes are easily injured, even by minor blows to the head (according to some estimates, approximately half the American population suffers from some degree of MTLE). In nearly all cases, doctors hide MTLE from patients and instead diagnose them with some form of “mental illness,” or intentionally give them no diagnosis at all. Cannabis, when properly administered, treats MTLE, as well as frontal lobe epilepsies and cerebral palsies (for thousands of years, in cultures around the world, cannabis’s main use was for treatment of epileptic conditions such as MTLE). A large proportion of “recreational cannabis users” are actually undiagnosed or misdiagnosed temporal or frontal lobe epileptics, whose seizures affect the emotional and/or reasoning centers of the brain, causing the abnormal mood states and intrusive thoughts of “mental illness.” These seizures are controlled by cannabis. When left untreated, MTLE people are among the most vulnerable of our society, yet millions have been unjustly sent to jail because they were caught treating themselves with cannabis. As Shyloh has serious damage to her medial temporal lobes, causing severe seizures (seizures that are fully controlled by cannabis), she is also part of this MTLE group currently being denied the right to life and medical treatment.]
Specifically, Shyloh Sturm has been denied the following human rights:

The Right to Life: Shyloh has a legal right to use cannabis, which is the only medicine that can keep her alive. Without it, she will die an agonizing death in a few days. Shyloh also has a right to a diagnosis, and to the medical care that comes from such a diagnosis. Her right to life was violated when doctors in three countries (the USA, Switzerland, and Germany) falsified her medical records and test reports to withhold diagnosis and treatment from her. Shyloh’s right to life was further violated by the U.S. Embassy in Montevideo, Uruguay, and by the FBI, when they refused to investigate the doctors’ crimes against her.

The Right to Humane Treatment: The actions of German doctors at Garmisch-Partenkirchen Hospital and LMU in Munich toward Shyloh were illegal and inhumane, causing Shyloh tremendous suffering and nearly resulting in her death. The falsifications of her medical records and test reports by the two American doctors—Powers and Dorros—further prevented Shyloh from getting the medical care she needed to stay alive. Without her cannabis medicine, Shyloh would be suffering from over 100 grand mal seizures a day; these seizures would kill her within a week. The U.S.’s failure to protect Shyloh from the doctors and their crimes, and its failure to provide a correct reading of her MRI, has prevented Shyloh from receiving any medical care whatsoever since she was born over 2.5 years ago. She still needs a proper diagnosis, tests to evaluate her current medical conditions, treatment options, etc.—all of which are essential for her to live a normal life without immense suffering.

The Right to Judicial Protection: Shyloh has a right to have her case properly reviewed, and her MRI honestly read, by an independent judicial body. Until Shyloh can be legally protected from the medical system, it is not safe for her to enter any hospital or health care facility in the world. When German, Swiss, and American doctors falsified her medical records and test reports to hide the fact that she was disabled, they were also giving her a death sentence—one that Shyloh or her parents had no legal way to reverse. (It is also likely that German doctors recognized the Jewish heritage of Shyloh’s last name, providing them with another reason to sentence her to death.) When Shyloh did not die by two months because of the care she had received from her parents, German doctors made several premeditated attempts to end her life (i.e., the lumbar and ventricular punctures, removal from her medicine, etc.). By refusing to investigate Shyloh’s case, and otherwise knowingly preventing the Sturm family from obtaining judicial protection for their daughter (whether through package seizure or other forms of intimidation), the U.S. government becomes an accomplice to the doctors and their crimes. To date, Shyloh has yet to be exonerated from the death sentence placed upon her by German doctors, with U.S. governmental entities doing everything possible to prevent her case from ever being heard publicly.
Therefore, the U.S. government has failed to protect Shyloh from the torture and cruel and inhumane punishment of the medical system—which is an act of discrimination against persons with disabilities.


SECTION III: LEGAL REMEDIES PURSUED TO RESOLVE THE FACTS ALLEGED

Regarding the requirement to exhaust domestic remedies, we request an exception for the following reasons:

· Shyloh’s parents have exhausted all options within the medical community to get a proper diagnosis and reading of their daughter’s MRI and EEGs.

· Packages with evidence sent from Europe or the USA were seized, preventing Shyloh’s parents from submitting their case to the U.N. Human Rights Council and other relevant governmental bodies. [Evidence of these seizures are provided as image attachments.] If any of the packages did arrive, they went unanswered.

· The FBI, which is responsible for investigating Shyloh’s case, refused to do so. It provided no explanation for this decision, and would not even assign one of its victim assistance counselors to the Sturm family.

· Though congresspersons are mandated to help constituents when U.S. federal agencies fail to do their job, the Sturm family’s senators both refused to assist Shyloh’s parents in getting the FBI to launch an investigation.

· A package with evidence was sent to U.S. President Barack Obama; it was, according to tracking, expedited to the White House in 0 business days. Yet, no reply ever came from Mr. Obama or his staff.

· The Sturm family is forced to live in Uruguay with their daughter because her cannabis medicine is still federally illegal in the U.S. and cannot be brought into the country. In addition, the type of cannabis that controls Shyloh’s epilepsy cannot be purchased in any of the U.S. states that have medical marijuana programs. This prevents Shyloh’s parents from being able to return to the U.S., or from having direct access to any of the resources within the U.S. Also, because German doctors hid Shyloh’s condition and refused to diagnose her, it would be illegal for Shyloh to be treated with cannabis, even in states like Colorado (and even with Shyloh’s two THC prescriptions).

· The U.S. Embassy in Uruguay remains the parents’ only resource, and it refuses to offer any assistance other than recommending that Shyloh be taken to the British Hospital.


SECTION IV: AVAILABLE EVIDENCE

See images from Shyloh’s MRI, the tracking documents and the embassy letter attached to this email.

Download Shyloh’s full MRI here: apostlesoil.com/Shyloh_Sturm_MRI.zip
Download Shyloh’s EEGs here: http://apostlesoil.com/Shyloh_Sturm_EEG.zip
Download all medical records here: apostlesoil.com/Sturm_Medical_Documents.zip
Download an English translation of the medical records here: 
Download the letter to FBI Director James Comey here: apostlesoil.com/FBI_Letter.PDF
Download the letter to President Barack Obama here: apostlesoil.com/President Obama.doc
View the webpage with the new cannabis protocol that was used to save Shyloh Sturm’s life here: http://apostlesoil.com/

SECTION VI:  PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES

We are requesting urgent precautionary measures from the IACHR, as detailed below.

Shyloh Sturm’s life is currently threatened by: 1) the complete failure of the medical system to treat her; 2) the failure of the U.S. government to protect her, an American child sentenced to death by the German medical system; and 3) international cannabis prohibition, which prevents Shyloh in every way from getting the medicine she needs to stay alive. Until these issues are resolved, Shyloh’s life will be in constant danger—as will the lives of thousands, if not millions, of other children (and adults) all across the Americas who have similar medical conditions.

Shyloh’s parents are grateful for being welcomed into Uruguay, and for its legalization of cannabis. Unfortunately, Uruguay’s laws place a limit of six flowering plants per household, or 40 grams per month per person. These limits are arbitrary and reflect an attitude that the cannabis user is a drug addict who must have his addicting substance limited. We ask the IACHR to please petition the Government of Uruguay to reconsider its laws in regard to cannabis users, with an understanding that thousands of Uruguayan citizens and residents rely on cannabis as a medicine. When cannabis is seen as the medicine that it is, it becomes clear that plant limits are irrational: a medical patient needs to be able to grow as many plants as he needs, or buy however many grams are necessary, to treat his condition(s) and preserve his life.

Regarding Shyloh, Mr. Sturm would need to grow mostly landrace Cannabis sativa plants to treat her medical conditions. These plants produce less than a quarter of the flowers of modern cannabis strains, and take several months longer to grow (which is why they are not used commercially). Six of these landrace plants, flowering at one time in a single household, will not produce sufficient medicine to control Shyloh’s seizures—nor will 40 grams a month. Besides the landrace Cannabis sativa plants that are needed for her treatment, Shyloh also requires Cannabis indica plants and hemp (for CBD). To find an optimum “mother plant” with the best medicinal phenotypes to treat her conditions, Mr. Sturm would also need to grow about 25 to 50 “test” plants to determine which is the most efficacious. As all horticulturalists know, it is necessary to experiment with multiple plants in order to find the best phenotypes, thus more than six plants would need to be grown in order to find the best ones for keeping Shyloh alive and stable.
Shyloh’s father has systemic sarcoidosis and also cannot live without cannabis. To treat his medical condition he requires the same amount of medicinal cannabis as his daughter. If he were to obey Uruguay’s six-plant limit, or get 40 grams per month from a club, he would not have enough medicine to treat both himself and his daughter, requiring him to make a decision about which one of them gets to live. In addition, those six plants or 40 grams per month are still not a sufficient quantity of medicine to treat a condition as serious as Shyloh’s metastasized brain cancer or Mr. Sturm’s systemic sarcoidosis. Cannabis plant and gram limits place life-threatening restrictions on anyone who uses cannabis as a medicine, thereby violating an individual’s right to life and to medical care.

We ask the IACHR to please petition the country of Uruguay to immediately reconsider its laws in regard to cannabis plant limits. Cannabis is a medicine that does not affect those who are already healthy; such individuals do not seek it and do not need to use it. Whereas those who are ill with serious conditions—for example, with epilepsy (including “mental illness”), cerebral palsy, cancer, strokes, arthritis, asthma, etc.—find dramatic improvement in their physical and psychological health when they use cannabis, and so use it regularly. In truth, cannabis is only used by the sick, who need it as medicine. No one can become addicted to it because cannabis has been medically proven, after 50 years of extensive research, to be non-addicting.

`

We would also ask the IACHR to request that Uruguay not involve the medical system in its distribution of cannabis. Shyloh’s case proves that doctors routinely withhold diagnosis from select groups of patients to prevent them from getting the treatment needed to survive. Though the medical community’s own literature documents the dramatic medicinal effects of cannabis on everything from cancer to cholera to infantile spasms, it has nonetheless chosen to support cannabis prohibition for decades, denying patients access to the only medicine that can save their lives. The medical system’s support of prohibition can only rationally be explained as either an intentional denial of medical care or gross incompetence when it comes to protecting and caring for patients. Either way, it shows an inability on the part of doctors to take responsibility for the administration of cannabis, which is being revealed as humanity’s most important and powerful medicine. Therefore, doctors should be excused from further involvement in deciding who gets to use it. Instead, patients should be allowed to judge for themselves whether they need cannabis. For eons before the Western medical system, people relied on a system of symptom-based self-treatment—with cannabis as their primary medicine.

We also ask the IACHR to petition the U.S. government for an accurate, truthful reading of Shyloh’s MRI. Without this, Shyloh cannot be protected nor receive the medical care she needs to survive. The U.S. government has forensic experts, military doctors, and other resources that could easily read the test. Certainly, the U.S. government can order someone with the appropriate training to report on Shyloh’s MRI honestly. It is a matter of life and death for her.

It is not only Shyloh’s life that is in grave danger if her MRI is not read correctly, but the lives of many other children. According to the medical literature, Shyloh’s congenital brain cancer (likely a PNET tumor) is extremely rare and must have occurred from exposure to a cancer-producing toxin in the environment. There is no doubt that the cause of Shyloh’s cancer was pesticides from the farm next to the house where her pregnant mother had lived [address: 2400 Ward Road, Bozeman, Montana]. That exposure either came from when a pesticide-spraying plane dusted the house (Ms. Salak reported the incident to the State of Montana), or from a nearby experimental field that had been sprayed with a substance so toxic that officials put up “danger” signs and hauled away the topsoil in trucks. Both of these events occurred in the months before Shyloh’s mother became pregnant.

Shyloh’s case shows that doctors routinely hide congenital brain cancer by not diagnosing or treating children with the condition. Therefore, it is likely that most newborn cancer cases are never reported. This means that pesticide-related cancers are not being properly reported or investigated. There is at least one Montana child, Cash Hyde, born shortly before Shyloh, who died from the same type of PNET brain tumor that she had. Two cases of such a rare cancer are sufficient to create what is called a “cluster,” providing evidence of a toxin threatening a particular region. Unfortunately, as doctors falsified Shyloh’s MRI and hid her cancer, no report was ever submitted to authorities; therefore, there were no cluster alerts and no investigations. Until Shyloh’s MRI is read honestly, the health of every person in Montana is in jeopardy.

In addition, there are literally millions of people suffering and dying from the same medical conditions that Shyloh has: epilepsy (over 30% of epilepsies are untreatable; Shyloh’s type is 100% untreatable), cerebral palsy (100% untreatable), strokes (long-term survival rate is less than 40%) and cancer (metastasized congenital brain cancer is 100% fatal). The medical system admits it can do nothing for these patients. If Shyloh’s MRI were read honestly, there would be proof that her cannabis treatment protocol works on these conditions, and patients would finally have a treatment option. By falsifying Shyloh’s MRI and EEGs and hiding her conditions, the medical system is preventing the public from knowing that cannabis treats most “untreatable” conditions, like metastasized cancer, cerebral palsy, or strokes.

We appeal to the IACHR for help in getting an honest reading of our daughter’s MRI—not just for ourselves, but for every person suffering from a chronic or terminal illness who will die if the truth doesn’t come out. During the last two years, as the medical system and its political allies did everything they could to hide Shyloh’s case from the world, and as Shyloh’s parents unsuccessfully petitioned everyone from the FBI to the U.N. to Israeli President Rivlin, thousands of untreated people died who could have lived. Would Brittany Maynard, a 29-year-old woman who was diagnosed with an “incurable” brain cancer similar to Shyloh’s, have committed assisted suicide in 2014 if Shyloh’s case had been made public? Would the many other cancer patients, who also took their lives, be alive today if they had been offered the choice of Shyloh’s cancer treatment protocol? Shyloh’s grandmother, who was diagnosed with untreatable, metastasized Stage 4 lung cancer, knew of Shyloh’s cannabis treatment protocol and used it. Unlike Ms. Manyard, she is still alive. It is almost certain that Ms. Maynard would have tried Shyloh’s protocol if she had known about it—and likely, she would still be here, too, recovered and living a full life. In the time it has taken to read this complaint, it is likely that a child somewhere in the Americas has died who would have lived if Shyloh’s MRI had been read correctly. How many lives must be lost because the medical system won’t acknowledge the truth about medicinal cannabis? Isn’t it time that Shyloh’s MRI is read properly, and truth is revealed to the world?

Finally, we would ask the IACHR to address the improper scheduling of cannabis as a Schedule 1 Drug by the U.S. Drug Enforcement Agency (i.e., a substance with “no medicinal value,” that is supposedly “highly addicting”). That Schedule 1 claim goes against the entire body of current research which concludes that cannabis is both highly medicinal and non-addictive. In addition, the Schedule 1 status directly contradicts hundreds of published case histories of infants, children, and adults whose medical conditions were all successfully treated by cannabis. The DEA’s irrational scheduling of cannabis is obvious with the example of Marinol, or laboratory-produced THC, which is listed as only Schedule 3. Regardless, a single case of an individual being successfully treated with cannabis—such as Charlotte Figi, the epileptic girl in Colorado—should be sufficient grounds for the U.S. government to change its scheduling laws, thus ensuring that no citizen’s access to medical care is violated.

Under cannabis’s current scheduling, if a parent saves his deathly ill child with cannabis he is violating federal law; even with a diagnosis, that parent can be charged with serious crimes. In addition, any child or adult who uses a special cannabis strain to treat a medical condition—such as “Charlotte’s Strain” used by Charlotte Figi and other epileptic children in Colorado, or the landrace sativa strain that keeps Shyloh alive—cannot travel with their medicine (whether from state to state, or country to country) without violating drug trafficking laws. Thus, medical cannabis patients are forced to surrender their freedom of movement, as if they were criminals. In addition, as Shyloh’s case proves, any U.S. citizen who becomes ill abroad and requires a special cannabis strain to live, cannot return home—his life-saving medicine will be seized by U.S. customs agents, and he will be promptly arrested. These are all clear violations of an individual’s most basic human rights.

Unfortunately, the entire drug-scheduling system relies on a proper diagnosis being given to patients by the medical community. Yet, as Shyloh’s case documents, this “power of diagnosis” rests in the hands of a corrupt medical system without any checks and balances, with doctors flagrantly lying to patients, hiding diagnoses, and upholding the falsifications of colleagues. Thus, by requiring a patient to obtain a doctor’s permission before he can legally save his life with cannabis, lawmakers are giving doctors absolute power over who will live and who will die. As Shyloh’s case shows, this power is being horrendously abused by the international medical community. Millions of legitimate patients have been imprisoned worldwide for trying to treat their undiagnosed conditions with cannabis. Meanwhile, parents of epileptic children are legally forced to exhaust all surgical and pharmaceutical options peddled by the medical system (including surgically removing parts of the child’s brain) before they are permitted to use cannabis as a treatment. Clearly, cannabis prohibition violates every person’s most fundamental right to life. A critical step towards stopping these abuses is to take away the medical community’s power over cannabis, while allowing families to once again self-treat.

In petitioning the IACHR for assistance in rescheduling cannabis, the Sturm family wishes to emphasize that cannabis is the only drug that can treat a wide range of serious medical conditions—from epilepsies to metastasized cancer—with no risk of overdose, no risk of addiction, and no risk of long-term harm. It is safe for infants and pregnant women, and can be easily grown by any family. Cannabis is the only medicine currently existing that can be safely used by the consumer without needing any supervision from the government or medical system.

Once cannabis treatment emerges as an alternative to the medical system’s monopoly on health care, a competing industry of self-treatment can be resurrected. This system would be based on symptomatology, which is what Shyloh’s parents used to successfully treat her four medical conditions—infantile spasms (epilepsy), metastasized brain cancer, cerebral palsy, and strokes. Her parents also used symptomatology to treat Shyloh’s grandmother’s terminal, “untreatable” Stage 4 metastasized lung cancer, as well as Mr. Sturm’s terminal, “untreatable” systemic sarcoidosis. These cases prove that the ancient methodology of symptom-based medicine—with cannabis as the foundation of treatment—is far more effective at treating disease than the model we currently have. It must also be understood that unchecked corruption in the medical system leads to the deaths of far more people than disease ever does. If one were to create a system of self-care that can work in tandem with a reformed medical system—one devoted to honesty and preserving life—then most of the common diseases of our time would soon disappear completely. Removing all regulations on cannabis is the first step toward building such a system. In addition, the crimes of the current medical system must be exposed and expunged—which can be done with an honest reading of Shyloh’s MRI.

We ask the IACHR to petition the U.S. government to remove all regulations on cannabis, so patients will have full access to it and can travel freely travel with it. Shyloh—an American citizen—will not be able to travel outside of Uruguay until this happens. In addition, until Shyloh’s MRI is honestly read, doctors can always use her cannabis treatment as an excuse to seize and murder her (as doctors in three countries already attempted to do). Any law that gives an arbitrary individual the power of life and death over us or our children—without any checks and balances, appeals, or reprieves—must be considered a tyrannical law that threatens humanity, itself. Cannabis prohibition has become a human rights debacle, resulting in the unnecessary deaths of millions. We need to immediately return to the system of symptom-based healing that existed prior to the 20th century, re-establishing cannabis as our primary medicine.

In summary, we appeal to the Commission to please take precautionary measures for Shyloh, as she has not received medical care for 2.5 years and her life remains in grave danger. In addition, we ask the Commission to please disseminate this case to its member countries, so they can reevaluate their cannabis laws.
